
 
 
INLAND WETLANDS & WATERCOURSES COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING – MARCH 27, 2012   
WOLCOTT TOWN HALL, COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
MINUTES 6:30 P.M.    PAGE 1 of 7                                                           
  
Note: These are summary minutes. A tape recording of this meeting is on 
file in the Inland Wetlands and Watercourses Office, Wolcott Town Hall.   
 
Chairman Garrigus called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m., with the Pledge of 
Allegiance and attendance was taken. 
 
Members Present: Mark Garrigus, Richard Tucker, Roy Balkus, Sam Zotto, 
Brian Lanese, Teresa Pineau   
 
Members Absent: Bill Harpin 
 
Alternates Absent: David Hamel and Ed Myers 
 
Alternates Absent: Teresa Northway 
 
Approval of Minutes:    
 
Upon MOTION by Richard Tucker, seconded by Roy Balkus, it was 
unanimously voted to approve the minutes of August 23, 2011 regular meeting. 
 
CORRESPONDENCE 
 
There were none. 
 
CHAIRMAN'S REPORT 
 
Chairman Garrigus stated that they have 12 signoff. 
  
SUB-COMMITTEE REPORTS 
  
There were none. 
 
PUBLIC REQUESTS 
 
There were none. 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
There were none. 
 
 
 



 
 
INLAND WETLANDS & WATERCOURSES COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING – MARCH 27, 2012   
WOLCOTT TOWN HALL, COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
MINUTES 6:30 P.M.    PAGE 2 of 7                                                           
  
New Business 
 
There were none. 

 
DISCUSSION OF MISC. MATERIALS, VIOLATIONS & COMPLAINTS 
 

• Discussion and Possible Action on 92 Averyll Ave, Wolcott, 
CT                

 
Chairman Garrigus informed the commission that they sent letters to Ms. Scully 
at 92 Averyll Ave and Cedar Lake Association regarding this violation.  
 
At which time Mr. Lanese said that he has to excuse himself from this because 
he is friends of the family. 
 
Chairman Garrigus advised the commission that activities were done on 92 
Averyll Ave. He noted that approximately two weeks ago, he was out of town 
and Mr. Tucker was involved at that point. At which time he explained to the 
commission that Ms. Scully removed 50 yards of material from the lake. He also 
pointed out in December there was a contractor who was doing work in the 
area. He advised the commission that Mr. Porter called our office to see if he 
could remove the material from Ms. Scully’s property and I said I have no 
problem with that but she needs a permit to do that. At which time he said so 
then this happen.  
 
Vice Chairman Tucker noted that they have pictures regarding this violation at 
which time he informed Ms. Scully that they received a complaint which she is 
aware. He then stated that illegal activities were going on her property at which 
time Mr. Parks visited the site on March 12th and spoke with her.  Also, Mr. 
Parks revisited the site and took more pictures on March 15th. And then I visited 
the site just to verify the extent and I went so far as speaking with Mr. Guerrera 
regarding this violation.   He then asked Ms. Scully to please as clearly as she 
can explain to the commission to the best of her knowledge in accuracy the 
sequence of events which ultimately resulted in the cease and desist order.   
 
Ms.  Jennifer Scully, of 92 Averyll Ave, Wolcott, CT was presented and came 
forward to point out that she never spoke with Mr. Parks. She explained to the 
commission where she lives on the corner of Averyll Ave and Wolcott Road.  
She advised the commission that Cedar Lake Association draws down the lake 
every fall so that everyone could work on there property if needed. She noted 
that all the silt and the soot and everything from route 69 goes right into her 
cove. Also she advised the commission that all the debris from the lake is 



 
 
INLAND WETLANDS & WATERCOURSES COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING – MARCH 27, 2012   
WOLCOTT TOWN HALL, COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
MINUTES 6:30 P.M.    PAGE 3 of 7                                                           
  
winded into the cove.  She explained that her Dad owns Wolcott Sanitation and 
he has a gentleman that works for him and he said he was going to clear the 
cove.  She noted that she and son live there alone and she is a working mom.  
Ms. Scully advised the commission that she just relied on someone else to take 
responsibility and she apologized. Ms. Scully noted that she thought that the 
person that she contracted was taken care of all the proper permits which she 
thought were in place. Also, she thought he had all of the regulations leading to 
what had to be done. 
 
 At which time Vice Chairman Mr. Tucker asked her if she could tell them who 
that person was.  
 
Ms. Scully said she doesn’t want to.  
 
Vice Chairman Tucker asked if the contractor was Mr. Guerrera at which time 
Ms. Scully replied no.  
 
Ms. Scully indicated that he was working on the property next door to her and 
he said he was going to take care of the cove for her. She stated that with the 
type of winter they had nothing was done and this person kept saying to her 
that he will get to it when the ground freezes. She noted that the water was 
cripping up. She also noted that Mr. Guerrera’s wife is a friend of hers who sits 
on the Cedar Lake board and a majority of people on the lake kept asking her 
when she was going to clean the cove. She indicated that last year her son got 
every ill from the bactierica levels in the lake. She stated that her cove was the 
only one that was not cleaned out.  She indicated that everyone on the lake 
said she could take a certain amount of fill out without having to go to a 
meeting. She stated that she told Mark Guerrera to go ahead and do the work. 
And it was her fault and that is where she stands today. 
 
Vice Chairman Tucker asked if she talked to anybody regarding permits. Ms. 
Scully said she did at different times but never official people.  She said she 
wasn’t disrespecting anybody in the town or the association.  She was under 
the assumption that this person took care of it. She noted that it was her fault 
and there were a chain of events and not knowing what was done.  She stated 
that she was concentrating on her business and her son.   
 
Vice Chairman Tucker inquired if Ms. Scully was aware of the permitting 
process which is necessary, at which time Ms. Scully said she I do now.   
 
Vice Chairman Tucker inquires if she knew before she initiate this.  
 



 
 
INLAND WETLANDS & WATERCOURSES COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING – MARCH 27, 2012   
WOLCOTT TOWN HALL, COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
MINUTES 6:30 P.M.    PAGE 4 of 7                                                           
  
At which time Ms. Scully said she knew that there were permits and she said 
didn’t know she had to obtain them. She thought the contractor was doing that.  
 
Vice Chairman Tucker inquired if she every spoke with Mr. Porter at which time 
Ms. Scully said yes and further stated at which time she indicated that he was 
supposed to do the work.  
 
Vice Chairman Tucker inquired if he told her before she began that she needed 
permits.  
 
At which time Ms. Scully stated that he never told her that. She advised the 
commission that he never told her directly that she needed a permit. She was 
under the assumption that the person that she contracted was the person that 
was suppose to obtain the permits.   
 
Vice Chairman Tucker inquired if she ultimately contracted Mr. Guerrera to do 
the work.  
 
 Ms Scully said it was the last minute and that’s why she thought everything 
was intact.  She said this has to be done because the water rising. She 
indicated that what he did, he shouldn’t have actually done because he couldn’t 
get what he should of take out when the water was low.  She said nothing was 
done to hurt anyone. She indicated what was done was to help the lake and get 
the silt and the bacteria levels out.  She also indicated that Chesprocott visited 
the site because they received a complaint too. She stated that she doesn’t 
have any pictures. She wanted to know what she could do to rectify this. 
 
Vice Chairman Tucker noted that they will share that with her, so that they can 
all understand what actually transpired and the direction in which they can go 
once they learn what transpired. He advised Ms Scully that might not happen 
tonight.   He also said what he is not getting from the testimony that he received 
from the contractor does not correspond with what Ms. Scully is telling me and 
there lies the problem. He also noted that Mr. Guerrera ask Ms. Scully if she 
had all of the permits in place at which time Ms. Scully replied yes.  
 
Vice Chairman Tucker said the understanding was that prior to Ms. Scully 
contracting Mark Guerrera that Mr. Porter had inquired about performing the 
same job. At that time Mr. Porter was informed by Mark Garrigus a permit would 
be required before any work commence.   
 



 
 
INLAND WETLANDS & WATERCOURSES COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING – MARCH 27, 2012   
WOLCOTT TOWN HALL, COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
MINUTES 6:30 P.M.    PAGE 5 of 7                                                           
  
Ms. Scully stated that she was never informed by Mr. Porter that she needed a 
permit. She also mentioned that she never spoke with Mr. Porter but he spoke 
with her Dad.  
 
Vice Chairman Tucker inquired if she spoke to anybody on the Lake 
Association. Ms. Scully said she talked to couple of the board members.  At 
which time Vice Chairman Tucker said who. Ms. Scully replied Sue Guerrera 
which is Mark’s Guerrrera wife and Rob Bun. She also mentioned that Cedar 
Lake Association had a couple of meetings regarding her cove.    
 
Vice Chairman Tucker said where the problem lies is that there is protocol for 
dealing with wetlands and watercourses. He pointed out that Ms. Scully is not 
following that protocol. He said that he belief that Ms Scully is aware of the 
permitting process but for whatever reason when doing this work yourself  she 
took it upon herself to not take out the require permits.  He also noted that he is 
trying to find out what the facts are.  
 
Ms. Scully stated that she didn’t do this intentionally. 
  
Vice Chairman Tucker pointed out that the contractors know what the permitting 
process is.  
 
Chairman Garrigus said he thinks the important point is the Lake Association 
has to give permission to all residents who live on the lake. Also the lake 
association owns everything below the high water mark. So if you are digging 
off your property, you are actually digging on their property and we always 
receive a letter from the association approving what activity is being done. They 
have final say on their property. So we didn’t receive anything from them. So 
that is the strange piece of it all.  He indicated that one there is no permit in 
place and two Ms. Scully is conducting activity on somebody else’s property.  
 
At which time Ms. Scully said she owns it.  
 
Chairman Garrigus pointed out that Cedar Lake Association is a governing 
board that conducts and regulates what goes on with the lake. He also noted 
the he doesn’t see any approvals from them and he hasn’t had any discussion 
from them either. 
 
Mr. Tucker inquired if she talked with Milone and MacBroom after the fact at 
which time Ms Scully said yes.                                  
 



 
 
INLAND WETLANDS & WATERCOURSES COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING – MARCH 27, 2012   
WOLCOTT TOWN HALL, COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
MINUTES 6:30 P.M.    PAGE 6 of 7                                                           
  
Chairman Garrigus pointed where they stand now is that the cove was dig out 
and the lake is still coming up and there is no further activity going on at which 
time Ms. Scully said right. 
 
Chairman Garrigus mentioned that he drove by there today and noticed that the 
pile of dirt was gone. Ms Scully said the dirt has been gone for awhile. 
 
At which time Mr. Tucker inquired if she knew where it was brought and Ms. 
Scully said she has no idea. 
 
Mr. Tucker noted that he visited the site today and there was no silt fence up 
but it was seeded. He noted that there will be an erosion problem. He also 
mentioned that he spoke with Mr. Guerrea and told him empatically and he said 
he would empatically have S&E controls in by Friday it’s now Tuesday and the 
silt fence is not been installed.  Mr. Tucker suggested that he not place the silt 
fence there but place hay bales at water level. Also he indicated that Mr. 
Guerrea has to be informed that hay bales are to be placed all along the 
waterfront and to be installed properly with stakes. At which time the 
commission agrees.   
 
Chairman Garrigus said they should place some type of matting down until the 
grass is established.     
 
Mr. Dan Houlihan of 97 Ipswitch Road, Bristol, CT was present and came 
forward to state that he is the president of Cedar Lake Association. At which 
time he handed a letter in for the record and he wanted it to be read. 
 
At which time Chairman Garrigus read it (see attached). He explained that the 
work start on Monday and he said he didn’t know anything about it.  He said 
until this day nobody has asked him anything that is going on or what they 
wanted to do. He explained that the cove has been always shallow for years. 
He noted that the cove has been proposed at some point to be dredged but for 
the four or five homeowners it would be an excess of $50,000.00 to do that. If 
the property owners wanted to do it the association has no problem.   
 
Chairman Garrigus said he doesn’t know if it is a requirement that she place a 
retaining wall there. Mr. Houlain replied no. He also pointed out that he doesn’t 
have a problem with what Ms. Scully did there. What she did there is nothing 
against the regulations on their part more so on your part. 
 



 
 
INLAND WETLANDS & WATERCOURSES COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING – MARCH 27, 2012   
WOLCOTT TOWN HALL, COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
MINUTES 6:30 P.M.    PAGE 7 of 7                                                           
  
Chairman Garrigus pointed out it is the approval part. Not that they would have 
to rely on the association for approval but usually we get a letter saying that you 
know about it.  
 
Mr. Houlain also indicated that they never not allowed anyone to remove 
material in front of their place and he knows that the cove does get allot of 
debris off the highway. He pointed out that year ago on the Bristol side the state 
went in and took out 700 yards of material.  He said she her cove needs to be 
cleaned out at some point. What she did was alright as far as their concern but I 
know the permit process was no followed. He said they want to keep a good 
working relationship and they want to keep it.  
 
Mr. Tucker said that everybody on the association is aware of he permitting 
process.  Mr. Houlian replied yes and Sue Guerrera is on the board.  
 
Mr. Houlinan pointed out the job was done well and nice.  
 
Mr. Tucker suggested that they should place an article in their newsletter to 
advise the lake resident that there is a permitting process that has to be 
followed prior to any work commencing. 
 
Chairman Garrigus recommended that Ms. Scully place hay bales along the 
water edge and also fabric where the area was disturb until the seed is 
established.   He also noted that she needs to come in a fill out an application. 
At that point they will review the application and they will see if they need 
anytime else. 
 
Chairman Garrigus informed the new commission members that he would like 
them to attend the DEP courses.   
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Upon MOTION by Sam Zotto, seconded by Roy Balkus, it was unanimously 
voted to adjourn at 7:30 pm 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
_______________________                     ________________________ 
Mark Garrigus– Chairman                          DOLORES DISTISO 

 INLAND WETLANDS COMMISSION           COMMISSION SECRETARY 


